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The development of the Hunt-Phelan Home came in two stages.
The first part was built around 1830 by George H. Whyett in the
Federal style of architecture with a square floor plan. Each of the
two stories "was comprised of four rooms with a hall between. A
small portico was built on the north or front side. A fine quality
of brick with a reddish-pink hue was used, and over the window
were placed the typical stone lintels. 0

The property was bought around 1835 by Colonel Eli M. Driver.
and was later passed on to his daughter, Mrs. William Hunt. It has
been in continuous possession of the Hunt and Phelan families since
that time.

In 1855 the second stage of_ construction occurred, which con-
sisted of a two- story kitchen and service w1ng on_the_back
connected._ byﬁa two-story porch The small front portico was moved
to an east side entrance and a large portico was_built on tﬁg_front
The wood cornice and architrave are ~supported by four large, fluted
columns.with cast iron caps and bases. An interesting feature™is
the system of cast iron oval vents built in both the cornices and the

foundations.

The property originally covered an entire block in the center
of which the house was located and around which were outbuildings
such as barns, stables, and servants' houses. A small house on the
west side contgined a furnace in which resin and cotton seed
were burned to prodice 'iliGmination gas for the- large house. It
took about twenty-four hours of steady burning to produce enough gas
to light' thé house 'for one evening's entertainment. The grounds
and, gardens, were laid.out by a French architect. A large flower
garden was edged by’ ‘boxwoods and cedar trees. There were also a
1illy pool, greenhouse, vegetable gardens, and, small fruits, while
surroundlng the grounds was a hedge of lovely Cherokee roses.
Evidences of these gardens still exist, although they are not to be
found in their former splendor.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIF'CANC% .
' The Hunt-Phelan houseé is one of the handsomest in West

Tennessee, having been built in that era of house building which
marked the years of great prosperity in the South. The significance
of the house is magnified due to the fact that it is the last
remaining example in Memphis of this grand style of architecture,
all of the many other fine buildings having long since given way to
modern progress.

The house had a colorful and brilliant social history in the
years preceding the Civil War, and during the four years of strife,
much important history was made within its walls. When Memphis
was occupied by Federal troops, General Grant used the house as his
headquarters, and in 1863 it was used as a Federal hospital. When
the family was forced to move out of the house, they were allowed one
freight car of furniture. When they returned the house was completely
empty of all its furnishings The furniture that was saved in the
frelght car still remains in thé house today. President Jefferson
‘Davis was a friend of the family and was entertained there frequently
before and after the war. Confederate General Leonidas Polk made
his headquarters there for a while. President Andrew Johnson was
also a guest in the house. Later the house was occupied by nothern

of President Johnson it was restored to Colonel Hunt.

The house today belongs to two Phelan brothers, who are
interested in the house being preserved in order that it might be
studied by future generations to see how life was lived in that
period of the South's history. It is located in an area slated for
urban renewal, but it will not be demolished. The Memphis Housing
Authority is very much interested in the house being incorporated in
the renewal program as an example of this fine style of architecture.
They are aware of the great necessity of its preservatlon and are
cooperating fully with historical agencies to assur reservation
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As the designated State Liaison Officer for the Na-
tic;nal Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (Public Law
89-665), 1 hereby nominate this property for inclusion
in the Natxonal Register and cerufy that it has been
evaluated accordmg to the criteria and procedures set
forth by the National Park Service.
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